PEACE RIVER REGIONAL DISTRICT
PUBLIC HEARING — MINUTES
Proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2295, 2019
March 12,2020 @ 7:00 p.m.
Peace River Regional District Dawson Creek Office, 1981 Alaska Avenue,
Dawson Creek, BC

ATTENDANCE:

Peace River Regional District: Leonard Hiebert, Director of Electoral Area D (Chair)
Tyra Henderson, Corporate Officer
Kole Casey, South Peace Land Use Planner
Erin Price, Bylaw Enforcement Officer

Applicant/Owner: Darryl Haney

Public: 8 members of the public

1. CALLTO ORDER

The Chair called the meeting to order at 7:01 pm.

STATEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Chair stated the procedural rules in place to govern the conduct of the public hearing
as written in the agenda.

INTRODUCTION TO PROPOSAL

Staff provided those in attendance with a summary of proposed Zoning Amendment
Bylaw No. 2295, 2019 for the property legally described as Parcel A (being a consolidation
of lots 3 and 4, see BB1974913) of Section 26, Township 78, Range 15, W6M, PRD,
PGP12184.

Staff summarized the proposal to add a text amendment to the R-4 (Residential 4) zone,
to allow two single family dwellings on the subject property.

SUMMARY OF APPLICATION PROCEDURE

Staff provided a summary of the application procedures and timeline as outlined in the
agenda for those in attendance at the hearing.

COMMENTS FROM AGENCIES AND MUNICIPALITIES RECEIVED

Staff read aloud and summarized the comments received from agencies and
municipalities as outlined in the agenda.



Minutes of Public Hearing — Proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2295, 2019 Page 2 of 4

6. WRITTEN COMMENTS RECEIVED FROM PUBLIC

The Chair called for any written comments from members of the public in attendance.
None were offered.

The Chair stated that as of 4:00 pm on March 12, 2020 the Peace River Regional District
had not received any written comments from the public.

7. COMMENTS FROM APPLICANT(S)

The Chair asked the applicant if he would like to make any comments related to the
proposed bylaw.

e The applicant presented the following information: The home and one-bedroom
mobile trailer were placed on the parcel by Mr. Sumner in 1975 and have been there
ever since.

e From the applicant’s knowledge there have been no inquiries by the PRRD about this
second residence.

e The property was purchase by the applicant in 2014, at which time the applicant did
exterior renovations. The electrical, plumbing and structure have had no upgrades.

e The yard was cleaned up and landscaped, and the dilapidated structures were
removed.

e The applicant would like to have the text amendment added to this parcel to allow a
second home in order to bring the property into compliance. Thank you.

8. COMMENTS FROM PUBLIC

The Chair asked the members of the public in attendance if they had any comments
related to the proposed bylaw. The following questions were asked by the attendees:

Member of the public

e Inquired as to what the application is regarding, and if this is about the applicant
wanting to maintain the trailer on this property?

Staff responded that the proposal was to allow a second single family dwelling on Parcel
A, and the intent is to allow the applicant to leave the trailer there, however if approved
the applicant could remove the trailer and place on another dwelling.

e The member of the public had no problems with the trailer being there but disagreed
that the applicant now would have the opportunity to build two houses on the
property. They stated that they own land to the west and would love to build two
houses on their property but noted it is difficult to get that approved. They also
stated that the housing rental market is down 80%, and does not think we need more
houses.

The Chair asked again if there any further comments from the public.



Minutes of Public Hearing — Proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2295, 2019 Page 3 of 4

Member of the public

e A member of the public asked if anything has been permitted on these residences?
Has Northern Health approved any of the sewage and water works on the property?

Staff stated that the applicant made a request to Northern Health for information on
sewerage systems permits applied on the property. Northern Health responded that no
permits have yet been taken out on that property. No building permits were also issued
on that property.

e The member of the public asked if it was legal to apply for something even if there
was nothing permitted under this condition.

The Chair responded that this Public Hearing is looking into any specifics with respect to
the zoning amendment application and that permitting is a bylaw issue and would be
dealt though bylaw enforcement.

e The member of the public asked if this property can be rezoned without proper
building permits on the property.

The Chair stated that once this application comes to the Regional Board, the Board
makes the ultimate decision, and will receive all of this information. The Chair cannot
speak on behalf of the Regional Board, however the PRRD has systems and processes in
place and if they are not being followed then this would have to be rectified before we
move forward. If there are no permits that something that is under bylaw enforcement
however the PRRD can still move forward with this zoning amendment application.

Staff commented that there are no building permits on the property, so one of the tools
for local governments is to put notices on title, which was approved at the February 13t
2020 Regional Board meeting. Staff discussed details regarding how a notice on title
works and its uses.

e The member of the public sought confirmation that the Regional Board can rezone
the property without having any permits or anything removed.

The Chair confirmed that this can occur.

Member of the public

e The member of the public sought clarification that the sewer infrastructure is up to
code, and was curious if this had anything to do with this application?

The Chair stated that sewer falls under Northern Health’s jurisdiction, and that Northern
Health responded to this application with the information provided.

e The member of the public asked if the PRRD could rezone it without any of that going
through?

The Chair stated that they can rezone it but the permitted infrastructure for sewer and
water is up to Northern Health. The PRRD does not have the authority.

The Chair called for comments from the public for a final time.



Minutes of Public Hearing — Proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2295, 2019 Page 4 of 4

9. FINAL COMMENTS FROM APPLICANT(S)

The Chair asked the applicant if he would like to make any final comments related to the
proposed bylaw.

The applicant stated that as far as permits go, there were no real structural changes to
the house or the trailer, as improvements were only exterior siding and landscaping. The
applicant didn’t understand the worry about the building permits as there was only
siding, paint and updated windows.

Member of the public 2

e The applicant does not speak the truth and only for his best interests and not for
anybody else’s best interests.

The Chair stated that any future discussions or clarification can be addressed to the
planning department and not to the Directors of the Board, as now new information can
now not be received.

10. TERMINATION OF PUBLIC HEARING
The Chair terminated the Public Hearing at 7:21pm.

Certified to be a fair and accurate summary of the nature of the representations respecting
proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2295, 2019, held on Thursday, March 12, 2020.

Original signed by: Original signed by:

Tyra Henderson, Recorder Director Leonard Hiebert, Chair



